LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS COLLECTION Michigan State University

23

THE DEPUTY SHERIFFS' ASSOCIATION

And

COUNTY OF DICKINSON

Between

WORK AGREEMENT

1993-1994-1995

12/31/95

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

٠

ARTICLE 1 -	RECOGNITION 1
ARTICLE 2 -	ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT RELATIONS 1
ARTICLE 3 -	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 2
ARTICLE 4 -	DEFINING PROBATIONARY & REGULAR EMPLOYEES 2
ARTICLE 5 -	HIRING 4
ARTICLE 6 -	LAYOFF AND RECALL 4
ARTICLE 7 -	ASSOCIATION SECURITY 4
ARTICLE 8 -	DUES AND REPRESENTATION FEE CHECKOFF 5
ARTICLE 9 -	REMITTANCE OF DUES 7
ARTICLE 10 -	DIGOTIETRETTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT
ARTICLE 11 -	SAFETY AND TRAINING 7
ARTICLE 12 -	
ARTICLE 13 -	LEAVE OF ABSENCE 7
ARTICLE 14 -	Conditional with the mention of the second
ARTICLE 15 -	ASSIGNMENTS DURING HOURS OF DARKNESS 8
ARTICLE 16 -	OVERTIME CALL-INS 8
ARTICLE 17 -	
ARTICLE 18 -	RETIREMENT
ARTICLE 19 -	
ARTICLE 20 -	USE OF COUNTY EQUIPMENT
ARTICLE 21 -	COLLEE DILEMENT COLLECTION COLLECTION
ARTICLE 22 -	UNIFORMS
ARTICLE 23 -	
ARTICLE 24 -	WAGE SCALE, SHIFT PREMIUM AND LONGEVITY
ARTICLE 25 -	
ARTICLE 26 -	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE 27 -	10
ARTICLE 28 -	TERNS OF AGREEMENT

#### ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION

Section 1:

Pursuant to and in accordance with the applicable provision of Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965, as amended, the Employer does hereby recognize the Association as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and other conditions of employment for the term of this Agreement and for all employees of the Employer included in the unit described below:

"All full-time employees of the Dickinson County Sheriff's Department, but excluding the Sheriff and Undersheriff or any person who has been given the power to hire, fire, or discipline."

Section 2:

The Employer has the right to hire, suspend, or discharge for proper cause, the right to transfer, the right to relieve employees because of lack of work and the right to assign the positions within the confines of this Agreement.

Section 3:

The Employer agrees that it will not interfere with the rights of its employees to become members of the Association and that neither the Employer nor any of its agents will exercise discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion because of a person's membership in the Association or the lack thereof.

#### ARTICLE 2: ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

Section 1:

All collective bargaining with respect to wages, hours and working conditions of employment, shall be conducted by authorized representatives of the Association. The authorized representatives of the Association and authorized representatives of the Employer will bargain collectively.

Section 2:

Employees covered by this Agreement will be represented in negotiations by a maximum of four (4) negotiating committee members.

Section 3:

Agreements reached between the parties to this Agreement shall become effective only when signed by the authorized representative.

### Section 4:

The Association, its officers, agents and members agree that during the duration of this Agreement there shall be no strikes, sit-downs, or any acts of any kind or form, whatsoever peaceable, that would interfere with the operation of this County. If any of these things take place, they shall be sufficient grounds for discharge.

### ARTICLE 3: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Employer, on its own behalf and on behalf of its electors, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, all powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Michigan and of the United States. Further, all rights which ordinarily vest in and are exercised by Employers except such as are specifically relinquished herein are reserved to and remain vested in the County, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:

- (A) To determine the size of the work force and increase or decrease its size;
- (B) To hire new employees, to assign and layoff employees, to change the length of time of any workweek or workday;
- (C) To direct the work force, to assign the type and location of work assignments and determine the number of employees assigned to operations;
- (D) To establish and change work schedules. work standards. and the methods, processes. and procedures by which such work is to be performed.
- (E) To select employees for promotion or transfer to supervisory or other positions and to determine the qualifications and competency of employees to perform the available work;
  - (F) To establish training requirements for purposes of maintaining or improving professional skills of employees and for purposes of advancement;
  - (G) To schedule the workdays and the hours of work.

The County reserves the foregoing rights except such as are specifically relinquished or modified by the terms of this Agreement.

It is agreed that these enumerations of management prerogative shall not be deemed to exclude other prerogatives not enumerated, and except as specifically abridged, delegated, modified, or granted by this Agreement, all of the rights, powers and authority the County had prior to the signing of this Agreement are retained by the County and remain within the rights of the County, whether or not such rights have been exercised in the past.

ARTICLE 4: DEFINING PROBATIONARY AND REGULAR EMPLOYEES

Section 1: Seniority - Probationary Employees

(A) New employees hired into the unit shall be considered as probationary employees for the first six (6) months of their employment. When an employee finishes the probationary period, the employee's name shall be entered on the seniority list of the unit, and shall rank for seniority from the date of hire. There shall be no seniority among probationary employees and it is agreed that the Employer may terminate the employment of a probationary employee without any reason whatsoever.

(B) The Association shall represent probationary employees for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours or employment and other conditions of employment as set forth in Article 1 of this Agreement.

(C) Seniority shall be on a department-wide basis in accordance with the employee's last date of hire. Seniority of any bargaining unit member who leaves the bargaining unit to accept employment by the County outside the bargaining unit, excluding elected office, shall be frozen and retained. (This provision shall also apply to any former bargaining unit member presently employed by the County, outside the bargaining unit, excluding elected officials.)

Section 2: Seniority Lists

(A) Seniority shall not be affected by age, race, sex, marital status, or dependents of an employee.

(B) Seniority lists on the date of this Agreement will show the dates of hire, name and job titles of all employees of the unit entitled to seniority.

(C) The employer will keep the seniority list up to date at all times and it shall be posted.

(D) A part-time employee is one who is scheduled to work less than thirty-two (32) hours per week.

(E) A temporary employee shall be designated as one who is filling in for an employee who is sick or on vacation or other leave and shall be treated in the same manner as a part-time employee.

(F) Part-time and temporary employees are not covered by this contract and are not granted any rights hereunder.

Section 3: Loss of Seniority

\$

An employee shall lose seniority for the following reasons only:

(A) The employee quits.

(B) The employee is discharged and the discharge is not reversed through the procedure set forth in this Agreement.

(C) The employee is absent for three (3) consecutive working days without notifying the Employer. After such an absence, the Employer will send written notification to the employee's last known address indicating that the employee's employment has been terminated.

. (D) If the employee does not return to work when recalled from layoff as set forth in the recall procedure.

З

(E) Return from sick leave and leaves of absence will be the same as (C) above.

Section 4: Job Posting and Bidding

(A) Promotions within the bargaining unit may be made on the basis of seniority. Job vacancies and new positions within the bargaining unit will be posted for a period of five (5) working days setting forth the minimum requirements for the position in a conspicuous place in the department. Employees interested shall apply within the five (5) working days of the posting. In the event the senior applicant is denied the promotion, the reason or reasons for the denial shall be furnished to the applicant and the steward in writing.

(B) If the Employer deems the employee's performance in the new position to be unsatisfactory, the Employer may, within four (4) weeks of the date the employee assumes the new position, transfer the employee to his former position upon written notice to the employee and the steward of the reasons for such transfer.

(C) Employees promoted to a higher classification shall receive the rate of pay of the first step of the new classification representing a pay increase in the classification to which they are promoted, as of the date of commencement of the duties thereof.

ARTICLE 5: HIRING

All prospective employees previous to their being employed shall be interviewed by the Sheriff as to their competency and qualifications for the position applied for. Final action in regard to hiring of new employees shall be determined by the Sheriff.

ARTICLE 6: LAYOFF AND RECALL

Section 1:

Should layoffs be necessary, seniority in years, months and days of County service shall be determining factors. Those with the least seniority will be laid off first, so long as there are employees remaining in the ranks qualified to perform the functions of those laid off.

Section 2:

When recalls to active employment are made, those with the most seniority will be recalled first, so long as they are qualified to perform the functions required of those who are recalled.

ARTICLE 7: ASSOCIATION SECURITY Section 1:

Employees covered by this Agreement at the time it becomes effective and who are members of the Association at that time shall be required, as a condition of continued employment, to continue membership in the Association or pay a service fee, hereinafter referred to as the representation fee, to the Association in an amount equal to the dues uniformly required of members of the Association, for the duration of this Agreement.

### Section 2:

Employees covered by this Agreement who are not members of the Association at the time it becomes effective shall be required as a condition of continued employment to become members of the Association or pay the representation fee commencing thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement, and such conditions shall be required for the duration of this Agreement.

### Section 3:

Employees hired, rehired, reinstated or transferred into the bargaining unit after the effective date of this Agreement and covered by this Agreement shall be required as a condition of continued employment to become members of the Association or pay the representation fee for the duration of this Agreement, commencing the 30th day following the beginning of their employment in the unit.

#### ARTICLE 8: DUES AND REPRESENTATION FEE CHECK-OFF

Section 1:

The Employer agrees to deduct from the wages of any employee, pursuant to signed authorization of any employee upon a written authorization form in conformity with the standard form used by the Employer, the dues or representation fee, if any, required by the terms of this Agreement. The written authorization form shall remain in full force and effect during the period of this Agreement and may be revoked only by written notice to the Employer and the Association during the thirty (30) day period immediately preceding the expiration of this Agreement.

### Section 2:

Dues will be authorized, levied and certified in accordance with the constitution and bylaws of the Association. The amount of any representation fee will be determined as set forth in Article 7 of this Agreement. Each employee and the Association hereby authorize the Employer to rely upon and to honor certifications by the Treasurer of the Association regarding the amounts to be deducted and the legality of the adopting action specifying such amounts.

#### Section 3:

The Employer agrees to provide this service without charge to the Association.

#### Section 4: Authorization Form:

I hereby authorize and request my employer, the Dickinson County Board of Commissioners and the Dickinson County Sheriff. to deduct from my earnings, one of the following:

( ) an amount established by the Association as monthly dues.

( ) an amount equivalent to the amount of monthly dues uniformly required of members of the Association, to be remitted to the Association as a representation fee.

The amount deducted shall be paid to the Association.

Please print: Last Name		First Name	
Address	Zip Code	Phone number	
Department	and	Classification	

Signature/Date

### Section 5:

diana.

1.1

4

The Employer shall not be liable to the Association by reason of the requirements of this Article, or by reason of the requirements of Article 7 and 9, for remittance or payment of any sum other than that constituting actual deductions made from the employee's wages. The Association shall indemnify the Employer and hold it harmless against any and all suits. claims, demands, expenses or other forms of liability of whatsoever kind or nature, including, but not limited to, legal, court, administrative, or other fees or expenses, including actual reasonable attorney fees for the area, and any back pay or other amounts directed to be paid to employees or others, that may arise out of or by reason of any action taken or not taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying with this Article, or with Articles 7 or 9, or in reliance on any authorization cards, lists or notices which may have been furnished to the Employer.

#### Section 6:

Check-off deductions under all properly executed authorizations for checkoff shall become effective at the time the application is signed by the employee and shall be deducted from the second pay period of the month following receipt of the written authorization by the Employer, and each pay period thereafter during the existence of such authorization.

### ARTICLE 9: REMITTANCE OF DUES

#### Section 1:

Deductions for any calendar month shall be remitted to such address designated by the financial officer of the Association. with an alphabetical list of names and addresses of all employees from whom deductions have been made no later than the fifth (5) day of the month following the month in which they were deducted.

#### Section 2:

4

The Employer shall additionally indicate the amount deducted and notify the financial officer of the Association of the names and addresses of employees who through a change in their employment status are no longer subject to deductions, and shall further advise said financial officer by submission of an alphabetical list of all new hires since the date of submission of the previous month's remittance of dues.

### ARTICLE 10: DISCIPLINE

An employee may be disciplined or discharged for just cause. Discipline shall be progressive where circumstances reasonably permit progressive discipline. Any dispute as to the existence of just cause for discipline or discharge, or the severity of the discipline warranted, shall be subject to the grievance procedure set out in this Agreement.

### ARTICLE 11: SAFETY AND TRAINING

The Employer and the Association shall designate two (2) representatives each, to a joint safety and training committee. One representative of the Union shall be a Union officer, and one representative of the Employer shall be a County Commissioner. The Committee shall meet a minimum of twice (2) per year, or more if requested.

#### ARTICLE 12: RESIDENCY

All employees shall maintain residency within Dickinson County. New hires shall become residents of Dickinson County within one hundred and eighty (180) days of hiring.

ARTICLE 13: LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Section 1:

Salary and fringe benefits will terminate during leave of absence. except if employee elects to self-pay insurance premium during approved leave.

Section 2:

No leave of absence shall be granted unless request is pre-sented through the Sheriff and approved by the Board of Commissioners.

#### Section 3

(A) Any employee who has been employed for six (6) months or more requiring a leave of absence shall make a written request of the Employer

for such leave. No employee with less than six (6) months of seniority shall be eligible for a leave of absence. Any leave of absence granted shall be without pay and for a period of not more than ninety (90) days. However, a leave of absence without pay may be renewed.

(B) Any leave of absence granted hereunder shall be reduced to writing, and one (1) copy thereof shall be given to the employee, one (1) copy shall be given to the Association steward, one (1) copy shall be given to the Association, and one (1) copy shall be retained by the Employer.

(C) Upon the expiration of any leave of absence granted hereunder, such leave may be reconsidered for further extension by the Employer if so requested by the employee, and such extension, if granted, shall be reduced to writing and distributed in accordance with (B) above.

(D) During the period of any type of leave of absence. the employee shall not engage in gainful employment in any industry. Failure to comply with this provision shall result in discharge without recourse.

(E) Seniority shall not be lost during any leaves of absence.

(F)No benefits shall accrue for time off the job during any leave of absence.

### Section 4: Maternity Leave

An employee shall be entitled to maternity leave without loss of seniority during such leave upon certification of her physician that she cannot continue to work. She shall return to employment as soon as her physician certifies that she is able to do so, provided the leave shall not exceed three (3) months beyond the date of delivery unless certified as necessary based upon the employee's health. She shall be returned to work at the prevailing rate of pay in the same classification and job. The Employer may request such an employee to present medical evidence of ability to continue working after the fourth (4) month of any pregnancy.

ARTICLE 14: QUALIFICATIONS WITH FIREARM

All full-time certified deputies or deputies authorized by the Sheriff to carry weapons will be required to qualify with firearms by meeting specified standards.

ARTICLE 15: ASSIGNMENTS DURING HOURS OF DARKNESS

It shall be at the discretion of the Employer within the allotted budget as to whether or not two (2) deputies will be assigned to a car during hours of darkness.

### ARTICLE 16: OVERTIME CALL-INS

Section 1:

When the Employer chooses to fill a shift, the Employer shall have the option of using either bargaining unit members or qualified part-time staff to fill the shift or provide the special events coverage. The determination of qualifications of part-time staff shall be the sole responsibility of the Employer.

#### Section 2:

The employer shall not use non-bargaining unit employees where such use results in a reduction of hours below forty (40) hours per week for any full-time bargaining unit employee, or where such use results in layoff or avoids recall of any bargaining unit employee.

#### Section 3:

e.

In the event a shift is filled by calling in full-time personnel, call-ins will first be made from within the classification being filled, i.e. open dispatch shifts will be offered first to dispatchers, corrections shifts to corrections officers, and road patrol shifts to certified deputies. An effort will be made to divide overtime equally among all bargaining unit members, and employees who refuse overtime shall be "charged" with the actual number of hours refused during the overtime period.

#### ARTICLE 17: WORKING HOURS

(A) Full-time deputies shall work a regular forty (40) hour week with schedule to be determined by the Sheriff.

(B) Overtime will be paid at time and one/half the regular hourly rate. An employee called in to work overtime shall be guaranteed two (2) hours of overtime.

(C) Holidays for hourly employees of the Sheriff's Department shall be paid at straight time (8 hours) if not worked and an additional eight (8) hours at time and one/half will be granted if employee works on any of the designated holidays.

(D) No overtime pay shall be received except as approved by the Sheriff or designee and as allowed by budgetary allowances set by the County Board of Commissioners.

(E) Search and Rescue will be paid at time and one/half providing forty (40) hours a week is exceeded.

(F) Marine and Snowmobile Patrol will be paid at time and one/half providing forty (40) hours per week are exceeded.

(G) For purpose of this Agreement, members of this bargaining unit shall be known as hourly employees.

### ARTICLE 18: RETIREMENT

All non-elected employees shall retire in accordance with State and Federal Statutes.

ARTICLE 19: USE OF PRIVATE AUTOMOBILES

No employee shall use his or her private automobile for County business without County Board approval.

### ARTICLE 20: USE OF COUNTY EQUIPMENT

No County equipment shall be utilized for other than County purposes and no County vehicle shall transport passengers not required by the County business being performed.

ARTICLE 21: COFFEE BREAKS

Employees shall be allowed two (2) fifteen (15) minute coffee breaks per 8hour shift taken so as not to interfere with departmental functions.

ARTICLE 22: UNIFORMS

Section 1:

A \$75.00 uniform purchase and maintenance allowance will be paid quarterly to each full-time employee at the beginning of each quarter.

Section 2:

When an employee of the Sheriff's Department has a uniform destroyed in the line of duty, it will be replaced without any deduction from the employee's uniform allowance.

Section 3:

Initial uniform issue will be as follows:

(A) Two (2) pair of trousers

(B) Two (2) summer, two (2) winter shirts

(C) One (1) summer, one (1) winter jacket

(D) One (1) summer, one (1) winter hat

Necessary accessories such as badges, belts will also be furnished. All initial issue must be returned upon termination of employment.

Section 4:

At the discretion of the Sheriff, Employees covered by this agreement may be required to replace uniform components which are no longer presentable. Such replacements will be paid for by the Employee using the uniform allowance provided by the Employer.

ARTICLE 23: PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Professional Liability Insurance will be carried by the County for all full-time Sheriff's Department employees.

ARTICLE 24: WAGE SCALE, SHIFT PREMIUM, AND LONGEVITY (See Appendix #1)

ARTICLE 25: FRINGE BENEFITS

Section 1:

Vacation shall be received as hereinafter specified.

1. All vacation must be taken within eighteen (18) months of accrual; the Sheriff will approve vacation schedules.

2. Vacation shall accrue as follows, to be taken at one (1) full day's minimum:

After 1 year: 5 working days After 2 years: 10 working days After 7 years: 15 working days After 15 years: 20 working days

3. Each employee's anniversary date for purpose of computing vacation shall be said employee's date of hire.

4. Any regular holiday falling on a work day during the vacation period shall not be counted as days of vacation.

5. Provided, further, that upon termination of employment an employee shall be paid for earned vacation not taken, including vacation earned during the year in which employment is terminated on a prorated basis.

6. It is agreed that three (3) members of the bargaining unit may schedule vacations for the same time. The vacation schedule shall be approved by the Sheriff and seniority shall be the determining factor in the case of conflicting vacation requests. More than three (3) persons may be allowed vacation at the same time with the permission of the Sheriff providing that scheduling permits. Within two (2) working days (M-F) if no response is given to a vacation request, vacation will be deemed approved.

Section 2: Hospitalization

1. All full-time employees and their families are covered by hospitalization insurance and the Blue Cross/Blue Shield Comprehensive Preferred Dental Plan with 100% of the cost paid by the Employer. Upon retirement. and if employee qualifies for retirement benefits under Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System. 100% of the hospitalization insurance is paid by the Employer. It is understood that neither Dental nor Vision benefits are extended to retirees. Insurance is with the Blue Cross Master Medical Plan.

2. Any annual increase in health insurance costs exceeding the 1989 base year rates (Single - \$1,675.80; Two person - \$3,628.68; Family -\$4,042.80) taken in aggregate plus 10% for each year thereafter shall be paid by the Employee. Said payment shall be permitted to be made through a revision in health care coverage whereby premiums are reduced below the limitation provided for herein by mutual agreement of the parties.

3. In the event the health insurance premium exceeds the cap causing an out-of-pocket expense for the bargaining unit employees, the parties agree to re-open the contract on the health insurance provision(s) only, to discuss any potential cost savings alternative to avoid the outof-pocket expense. It is further understood that in the event the issue has not been resolved, through negotiations, by the time the increased premium takes effect, the amount of premium that exceeds the cap will be withheld through payroll deduction unless altered by an agreement between the parties.

4. Family Continuation Riders, where applicable, will continue to be available at the Employer's expense for Employees whose anniversary

dates are prior to 1/1/90. For Employees hired on 1/1/90 or thereafter. Family Continuation Riders will be available at the Employee's option provided that the Employee pays the full costs of said Riders.

5. Employees electing to not be covered by the County's health insurance plan will be paid an annuity of \$100 per month through contributions to a deferred compensation plan. Employees choosing this option may elect to be enrolled in a Free Standing Benefit Program which includes Dental, Vision, and Drug Rider Coverage with said program to be paid for by the Employer.

### Section 3: Life Insurance

Life insurance coverage of \$5,000 shall be carried on each employee to the age of sixty-five (65) with such company or companies and of such a type as the Employer shall from time to time determine.

Section 4: Sick Leave

51

1: All full-time employees shall be entitled to annual sick leave of twelve (12) days. In the event such sick leave shall not have been used during any one year, then the unused portion of said leave shall accumulate to a maximum of one hundred (100) days. This provision shall be retroactive with regard to accumulation and said accumulation is understood to have accrued for the unused portion of sick leave earned but not taken in each given past calendar year.

2: Beginning on January 1, 1982, upon termination of employment, 25% of sick days shall be paid up to an accumulation of one hundred (100) days.

3. Upon retirement, employee shall be entitled to one-half (1/2) of sick leave accumulated.

4: As an incentive to limit the use of sick leave, the Employer agrees to pay a bonus to employees who have accumulated the (100) days of maximum sick leave. The bonus would be granted in the form of payment for 25% of the sick leave days accrued in the calendar year beyond the (100) days allowed. The (100) day limitation would remain in effect for other sick leave payoff provisions. The bonus would be granted as soon as possible after January 1st of the year which follows and shall be based on the regular hourly rate of the employee during the year in which the sick leave subject to this payoff was accrued. It is understood that with the payment of the bonus, the sick leave accumulation reverts back to the (100) day limitation on January 1st.

5. All employees on sick leave shall be required to inform the Sheriff/Department prior to their regularly scheduled shift, that they will not be reporting for work and state the reason for not reporting. Employees may be required to provide a doctors slip if absent for three (3) or more consecutive work days.

6. Anyone who shall take sick leave from his/her duties shall not engage in any other employment or recreational activity during the time the employee was scheduled to be on duty. Visits to a doctor, hospital or a pharmacy for the purpose of obtaining medical advice or assistance is permitted. 7: Employees having doctor or dentist appointments may schedule same during working hours with the approval of their department head with time away from work to be deducted from sick leave.

8: Sick leave may be used for the serious illness of an employee's spouse or child which requires the employee's immediate presence and which clearly prevents attendance at work.

9. If a definite pattern of sick leave abuse can be established in conjunction with an employee's regular days off, vacation, compensatory time off or weekends, the Sheriff may require a doctors slip for future similar infractions after first notifying the affected employee of his intentions to do so.

Section 5: Emergency Leave

All employees shall be entitled to three (3) days of emergency leave per year, not to be accumulated and not to be deducted from sick leave. The determination of emergency shall be made by the Sheriff. The Sheriff shall keep up-to-date forms on each employee of the department, which forms shall indicate sick leave and emergency leave taken, sick leave accumulated and the dates on which sick leave or emergency leave were taken. Minimum emergency leave allowed is one-half (1/2) day.

Section 6: Legal Holidays are as follows:

New Year's Day	Labor Day
Easter Sunday	Veterans' Day
Memorial Day	Thanksgiving Day
Independence Day	Christmas Day

Section 7: Personal Days

Two (2) personal days of employee's choice (not holidays and to be authorized by the Sheriff) will be given as long as the functions of the department are not disrupted. Such days must be taken within the calendar year. Within two (2) working days (M-F) if no response is given to a personal leave request. the request will be deemed approved. Employees hired on 1/1/90 or thereafter must successfully complete their probationary periods before being eligible to receive personal days.

Section 8: Compensatory Time

Within two (2) working days (M-F) if no response is given to a request to use compensatory time, the request will be deemed approved. Compensatory time shall be taken in increments of not less than one-half (1/2) hour.

Section 9: Retirement

(A) All eligible employees are required to participate in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System.

(B) The Employer agrees to pay for the C-2 Retirement Plan and employees shall contribute 1% on total salary.

(C) In 1990, the Employer shall provide the MERS F50 Retirement rider at no cost to the Employee.

In 1991, the Employer shall provide the MERS Benefit Program E-2 at no cost to the Employee.

In 1992, the MERS Benefit Program B-3 shall be implemented with the costs of adding said benefit to be paid by the Employee by way of a payroll deduction in the amount of 1% of salary with the balance of the cost of said benefit to be paid by the Employer.

### ARTICLE 26: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1:

(A) Employees with seniority covered by this Agreement will be represented by the Association President or designated representative in the grievance procedure. The Association shall have the exclusive right to assign said President or designated representative.

(B) The Employer will be notified of the name of the Association President and alternate, who shall serve only in the absence of the regular Association President.

(C) The Association President or designated representative shall be allowed necessary time off during working hours without loss of time or pay to present grievances to the Employer in accordance with grievance procedure.

### Section 2: Grievance Procedure

It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that the grievance procedure set forth herein shall serve as the means for the peaceful settlement of disputes that may arise between them as to the application and interpretation of this Agreement, or other conditions of employment. In order to be a proper matter for the grievance procedure, the grievance must be presented within seven (7) working days of the employee's knowledge of its occurrence. The Employer will answer in writing any grievance presented to it in writing by the Association.

Step 1: Any employee having a grievance shall present it to the Employer as follow:

(A) If an employee feels aggrieved, the grievance shall be discussed with the Association President.

(B) The Association President may discuss the grievance with the Sheriff or, in his absence, his designated representative.

(C) If the matter is thereby not disposed of, it shall be submitted in written form by the Association President to the Sheriff or, in his absence, his designated representative. Upon receipt of the grievance, the Sheriff or his designated representative shall sign and date the Association President's copy of the grievance.

(D) The Sheriff or, in his absence, his designated representative, shall give his answer to the Association President within five (5) working days of receipt of the grievance.

Step 2: If the answer at Step 1 is not satisfactory to the Association, it shall be presented in writing by the Association President to the County Controller within seven (7) working days after the Sheriff or, in his absence, his designated representative's response is due. The County Controller and the Association shall within fifteen (15) days arrange a meeting with the purpose of resolving the dispute or disputes. Step 3: If the answer at Step 2 is not satisfactory to the Association, it shall be presented in writing by the Association President to the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners within seven (7) working days. The Chairman of the Board of Commissioners and the Association shall within fifteen (15) days arrange a meeting with the purpose of resolving the dispute or disputes.

Step 4: If the answer at Step 3 is not satisfactory and the Association wishes to carry it further, the Association shall file a Demand for Arbitration within fifteen (15) days in accordance with the Michigan Employment Relations Commission's Rules and Procedures.

(A) The arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the Michigan Employment Relations Commission's Rules and Regulations.

(B) There shall be no appeal from any arbitrator's decision. Each such decision shall be final and binding on the Association, its members, the employee or employees involved and the Employer. The arbitrator shall make a judgement based on the express terms of this Agreement, and shall have no authority to add to or subtract from any of the terms of this Agreement. The expenses for the arbitrator shall be borne by the losing party. Whenever the arbitrator's decision is split, the fees will be prorated according to the decision handed down by the arbitrator.

(C) A grievance may be withdrawn without prejudice and if so withdrawn, all financial liabilities shall be canceled. If the grievance is reinstated, the financial liability shall date only from the date of the reinstatement. If the grievance is not reinstated within thirty (30) working days from the date of withdrawal, the grievance shall not be reinstated. When one or more grievances involve a similar issue, those grievances may be withdrawn without prejudice pending the disposition of the appeal of the representation case. In such event, the withdrawal without prejudice will not affect financial liability.

(D) Any grievance not answered within the time limits by the Employer shall be deemed settled on the basis of the Association's original demand.

(E) Any grievance not appealed by the Association within the time limits shall be deemed settled on the basis of the Employer's last answer.

### ARTICLE 27: MISCELLANEOUS

#### Section 1:

Any employee drafted into the Armed Forces of the United States shall, upon return from such involuntary duty, be entitled to reinstatement in the job at the prevailing rate upon return. No loss of seniority for periods of compulsory military service shall be suffered.

#### Section 2:

123

The parties to this Agreement agree that they shall not discriminate against any person because of sex, race, creed or color, and that such persons shall receive the full protection of the provisions of this Agreement.

### Section 3:

The Employer agrees to furnish reasonable space on a bulletin board presently maintained at the department occupied by employees for exclusive official use of the Association. Notices of Association meeting, Association recreation and social affairs, and Association elections and appointments may be posted on this board without prior approval by the Employer, but no other notices shall be posted thereon without the prior approval of the Employer. The Association agrees to limit its posting of occasional notices and bulletins to such bulletin board space. The Association further agrees that it will not post material which is profane or derogatory to any individual or to the Employer. All bulletins or notices shall be signed by the Association President or one of the Association's executive board members. The Association shall be responsible for the proper use and care of the bulletin board.

ARTICLE 28: TERMS OF AGREEMENT

Section 1:

This Agreement shall be effective from 12:01 A.M., January 1, 1993, and remain in full force and effect until 12:00 P.M., December 31, 1995, and shall automatically be renewed under the same terms and conditions unless ninety (90) days prior to December 31, 1995 either party shall give to the other written notice of its desire to change provisions or terminate this Agreement.

Section 2:

This Agreement is complete in writing and shall not be amended, changed, altered or modified, except by an instrument in writing, duly signed by the parties hereto.

Section 3:

The parties acknowledge that during negotiations that resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or any matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that all the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after their exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

Section 4:

The 1993 wage increase shall be retroactive for those employees on the payroll as of the date of union ratification (2/25/93).

Section 5:

A wage classification study will be conducted in 1995 with the results to be used in negotiations for the contract to commence 1/1/96.

Therefore, Employer and Union for the life of this Agreement each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and releases the other from the obligation to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this Agreement or with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

The foregoing waiver shall not be binding if the parties mutually agree to engage in collective bargaining with respect to a particular subject or matter covered or not covered in this Agreement.

For the Employer:

Date

91

Vertin Rock. Chairman

2 Marshell .11.

3/12/93

For the Association:

Sund M. Mayian Edward Vander Bloomen

-31-93 Date

#### APPENDIX #1

## WAGE SCALE, SHIFT PREMIUM AND LONGEVITY

#### 1993

The 1993 salary schedule shall reflect a wage increase of 5% at each step of ach classification.

POSITION:	SALARY GRADE	HIRE (MINIMUM)	(6) MONTHS	(1) YEAR	(2) YEARS	(3) YEARS
Dispatcher	06	\$16,844 (8.098)	\$17,567 (8.446)	\$18,288 (8,792)	\$19,012 (9.140)	\$19,708 (9.475)
Corrections Officer	10	\$18,779 (9.028)	\$19,682 (9.462)	\$20,610 (9,909)	\$21,514 (10.343)	\$22,442 (10.789)
Dep. Sheriff Road Patrol	14	\$22,158 (10.653)	\$23,371 (11.236)	\$24,608 (11.831)	\$25,795 (12.402)	\$27,033 (12,997)
Sergeant	15	\$22,500 (11.298)	\$24,815 (11.930)	\$26,131 (12.563)	\$27,446 (13.195)	\$28,788 (13.841)

1994 - Each step in each classification will be adjusted to reflect the average labor market movement using the methods prescribed in the Morley Study with the floor for said movement to be 4%.

1995 - Each step in each classification will be adjusted to reflect the average labor market movement using the methods prescribed in the Morley Study with the floor for said movement to be 4%.

Shift Premium: 1993, 1994 and 1995:

• 1 × 2

いいた 二日本の時間の日に、二日

のないです。

Afternoons:	\$ .20/hour
Midnights:	\$ .30/hour

Longevity: 1993, 1994 and 1995

Longevity will be paid in conformance with the following schedule. Longevity will be paid on a separate check issued during the month of the employee's anniversay date.

		Tive (5) complete years of Bervice.		200.00
2.	After	ten (10) complete years of service:		400.00
з.	After	fifteen (15) complete years of service:		600.00
4.	After	twenty (20) complete years of service:		800.00
5.	After	twenty-five (25) complete years of service:	1.	000.00